
WEDNESDAY JULY 5 2006

1

MINUTES OF A SPECIAL-CALLED MEETING OF THE BOARD OF

COMMISSIONERS OF CHATHAM COUNTY, GEORGIA, HELD ON WEDNESDAY,

JULY 5, 2006, IN THE COMMISSION MEETING ROOM ON THE SECOND

FLOOR OF THE CHATHAM COUNTY COURTHOUSE, LEGISLATIVE AND

ADMINISTRATIVE BUILDING, 124 BULL STREET, SAVANNAH, GEORGIA.

I.   CALL TO ORDER

Chairman Pete Liakakis called the meeting to order at 6:10 p.m., on Wednesday, July 5, 2006.

============

II.  INVOCATION

County Manager Russ Abolt gave the invocation.

============

III.  PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

All pledged allegiance to the flag of the United States of America.  

============

IV.  ROLL CALL

The Clerk called the roll.

Present: Pete Liakakis, Chairman

Dr. Priscilla D. Thomas, Vice Chairman, District Eight

B. Dean Kicklighter, Chairman Pro Tem, District Seven

Helen L. Stone, District One

James J. Holmes, District Two

Patrick Shay, District Three

Patrick K. Farrell, District Four

Harris Odell, Jr., District Five

David M. Gellatly, District Six

Also present: Russell Abolt, County Manager

Jonathan Hart, County Attorney

A. G. Bungard, County Engineer

Sybil E. Tillman, County Clerk

==========



WEDNESDAY JULY 5 2006

2

V. ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION

FORMAL SUBMITTAL BY MUNICIPALITIES FOR POTENTIAL PROJECTS TO

BE INCLUDED IN THE REFERENDUM EXTENDING THE SPECIAL PURPOSE

LOCAL OPTION SALES TAX.  (See attached letter sent to all municipalities on

the 23  of June.)rd

Chairman Liakakis said, we called this special Commission meeting because we’re going through

the process right now, as most of you know, for the SPLOST funding, and what I would like right

now is our County Manager —.

County Manager Abolt said, thank you.  Mr. Chairman, ladies and gentlemen, this is the first of

its kind in any preparation for a SPLOST vote and certainly I appreciate your patience with what

staff has suggested would be the beginning of a decision to eventually formulate what will be on

the ballot for the election in September.  Tonight is redundant with meetings you’ve had in the

past with the municipalities, but again by the procedure forth in the Legislature that makes

SPLOST possible, what staff is recommending that we would just get confirmation from each of

the municipalities as to what their projects are.  That would be done in the setting of this meeting.

We’ve already received information from the cities of Tybee and also Thunderbolt.  We recognize

those to be the official lists from those municipalities.  Mr. Bungard has a notebook containing all

that the County staff has as far as our knowledge of the projects.  We would expect that tonight’s

meeting would be very brief and any city not mentioned so far would come forward and either

submit a new list or confirm what they have submitted as their request for SPLOST, and tomorrow

afternoon I’ll be meeting with the Managers or the representatives from each of the municipalities.

We’ll be developing a set of a value of criteria for you.  Shortly thereafter we’ll be compiling a list

of all projects by municipalities and the criteria, making it available to this Board and to anyone

interested including certainly all the municipalities.  Then we’ll be asking that sometime between

now and possibly the end of the month of July that you would set two more public hearings at

which time you’d take additional testimony.  This time, this testimony would be on point for

projects.  Tonight you’re just receiving information.  When you have your public hearings, you go

through a specific enumeration of projects and then each of the municipalities advocating that

project could come before you in orderly fashion and present the rationale and reason behind it.

But again, tonight is meant to be brief.  It is, yes, redundant with what you’ve done before, but

keeping this legit was the State process for leading towards the SPLOST election.  We’re

suggesting this hearing not only take place but be done we hope in quick order.

Chairman Liakakis said, what I’m going to do now, I’m going to call out in alphabetical order the

particular cities for your list.  W e have a list that has been turned in by the City of Bloomingdale,

and what I’d like to ask now, are there any changes or is this the same list that was turned in

originally by the City of Bloomingdale?  A spokesman for the City of Bloomingdale responded: It’s

the same list, but we’ve attached the dollars to the list.  Chairman Liakakis said, okay.

Chairman Liakakis said, Garden City.  Any representative from Garden City?  Okay.  Well, tonight

— Wednesday, there’s a possibility they’re having their council meeting tonight, too.  We can



WEDNESDAY JULY 5 2006

3

check with that, if you’ll just make a note of this, Russ [Abolt], over there.  County Manager Abolt

said, yes sir.

Chairman Liakakis said, Pooler.  Mike [Lamb], are there any changes or additions or reductions

in your original list? Mayor Lamb said, no, it’s the very same.  Chairman Liakakis said, okay.

Chairman Liakakis said, Port Wentworth.  A spokesman from Port Wentworth said, ours is the

same.  Chairman Liakakis said, same list.  Okay, no changes.

Chairman Liakakis said, Thunderbolt —, oh, well, City of Savannah.  Mayor Johnson said, we

submitted our list and there are no changes.  Chairman Liakakis said, okay.

Chairman Liakakis said, Thunderbolt.  A spokesman for Thunderbolt said, we increased

somewhat, Mr. Chairman, based on the new six-year figure and we submitted that to Mr. Abolt.

Chairman Liakakis asked, do you have that?  County Manager Abolt said, yes sir.  Yes sir, we

have Thunderbolt and Tybee, for sure.

Chairman Liakakis said, all right, Tybee.  A spokesman for Tybee said, our list was submitted to

Mr. Abolt.  Chairman Liakakis said, all right, you have the new list then, Russ [Abolt].  County

Manager Abolt said, yes sir.

Chairman Liakakis said, Vernonburg. Intendant Jimmy Hungerpiller said, our list is the same.

Chairman Liakakis said, okay, Jimmy [Hungerpiller].  Thank you.

Chairman Liakakis asked, are there any comments from any of the participants today?  Basically,

as you all know, what we’re doing right now is just going through a process of seeing if there are

any changes, you know, in the request, but if we look at all the requests, ladies and gentlemen,

that came in to us from the County, the City and all the municipalities, and all, it was somewhere

close to $800 million.  We have right now approximately $290 million at the Level I to distribute

between the County and all of the cities.  So tomorrow, as was mentioned by our County

Manager, that you will have your Administrators or your City Managers meeting tomorrow with our

County Manager and our County Engineer to go some additional procedures and all, and then we

will have two public hearings and hopefully, you know, that these things, these requests have

been pared down.

County Manager Abolt said, let me explain for those in attendance.  We’re trying to make this as

easy as possible for all participants.  So as staff puts together the array of projects, we would

organize them by cities and so we would not expect unless there was interest for a municipality

to attend both public hearings.  We’re probably going to go — recommend by alphabetical order.

So if that is agreeable to y’all, when you’re public hearing — your first public hearing begins, you’d

have a presentation by Bloomingdale and they would present all their projects in one time, and

then we’d go — I would suggest the County, even though we’d come next to announcing that we

would hold off on ours to the very last, but that would allow you to plan and then for the

participants to plan as far as their participation and when that might occur.  It will also be a very

efficient way we hope for y’all to understand and take testimony.



WEDNESDAY JULY 5 2006

4

Chairman Liakakis recognized Alderman Edna Jackson.

Alderman Jackson asked, when will we have an opportunity to receive the County’s list?  County

Manager Abolt said, as I mentioned, what we’re going to do is we’ll work as quickly as we can,

but possibly by the time the Managers come and representatives for those council meetings

tomorrow — for Savannah, we’ll have that ready.  Our target date as to a time is two o’clock

tomorrow and we’ll give that to y’all, plus when the Managers develop the criteria that will be part

of the packet, too.

Commissioner Kicklighter asked, can I ask a question.  Chairman Liakakis said, go ahead.

Commissioner Kicklighter asked, tomorrow’s meeting with Savannah or are you having a separate

meeting with Savannah or all municipalities? County Manager Abolt said, all municipalities.  I just

mentioned that I believe the City of Savannah has a council meeting tomorrow, so I —.

Commissioner Kicklighter said, okay.  I mean, I didn’t know if y’all were doing —.  County

Manager Abolt said, city staffs — city staffs have already been invited at two o’clock up in the

fourth floor of this building.

Chairman Liakakis said, okay.  Do we have any other comments from any of the cities?  Okay,

are there any public comments, anybody from the public would like to come at the podium to

make a statement?  Okay, well, that’s it.  W e thank you very much.  And as we had mentioned

before, we are asking everybody to look at their list again and, of course, to reduce them.  Put the

ones that you have with priority and we’ll go from there.  We’re just going through this process of

getting it down.

June 23, 2006 BY HAND and CERTIFIED MAIL

The Honorable Otis S. Johnson, Mayor, Savannah

The Honorable Wayne Tipton, Mayor, Bloomingdale

The Honorable Andy Quinney, Mayor, Garden City

The Honorable Mike Lamb, Mayor, Pooler

The Honorable Glenn Jones, Mayor, Port Wentworth

The Honorable Anna Maria Thomas, Mayor, Thunderbolt

The Honorable Jason Buelterman, Mayor, Tybee Island

The Honorable James Hungerpiller, Intendant, Vernonburg

Dear Mayors:

As required by State law prior to a vote on a Referendum to extend the

Special Purpose Local Option Sales Tax (SPLOST) commencing October

1, 2008, the Chatham County Board of Commissioners will host a meeting

on Wednesday, July 5, 2006, in the Commission Chambers, second floor of

the Old County Courthouse at 124 Bull Street, Savannah.  The meeting will

begin at 6:00 p.m.



WEDNESDAY JULY 5 2006

5

The purpose of the meeting is for the County and each municipality to

discuss potential projects for inclusion in the referendum, including municipal

projects.  The Special Election is currently planned for September 19, 2006.

If you have any questions about the meeting or the proposed SPLOST

extension, please feel free to contact Russ Abolt, County Manager, at 652-

7869.

Sincerely,

Pete Liakakis

cc: County Commissioners 

R. E. Abolt, County Manager

A. G. Bungard, P.E., County Engineer

==========

ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business, Commissioner Stone moved that the meeting be adjourned.

Commissioner Farrell seconded the motion and it carried the motion carried unanimously.   The

Chairman declared the meeting adjourned at 6:20 p.m.

==========

APPROVED:    This ______ day of _______________, 2006

_____________________________________

Pete Liakakis, Chairman

Chatham County Commission

_____________________________________

Sybil E. Tillman, County Clerk


	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5

